
 
 
 

December 5, 2024 
 

The Honorable Xavier Becerra 
Secretary 
Department of Health and Human Services 
 
The Honorable Robert Califf 
Commissioner 
Food and Drug Administration 
 
Dr. Mandy Cohen 
Director 
Centers for Disease Control and Prevention 
 
Dear Secretary Becerra, Commissioner Califf, and Director Cohen: 
 
 You have, once again, failed to respond to my oversight requests for documents and 
information relating to COVID-19 vaccine adverse events.  Most recently, on November 19, 
2024, I wrote to you requesting unredacted records, previously released through Freedom of 
Information Act (FOIA) requests, regarding your agencies’ detection of and response to 
myocarditis and pericarditis in post-vaccinated individuals.1  The response deadline for that letter 
was December 3, 2024 and, to date, my office has not received any of the requested information.  
It appears that even in the waning days of the Biden administration, your agencies will remain 
defiant in providing the public with complete information about the COVID-19 vaccines. 
 
 Nevertheless, as I made clear in my November 19 letter, my oversight work must 
continue.  If it becomes necessary to subpoena these and other requested records in the next 
Congress when I become chairman of the Permanent Subcommittee on Investigations, I will do 
so. 
 
 As a follow-up to my November 19 letter requesting unredacted FOIA records relating to 
COVID-19 vaccine adverse events, I write today to highlight another example of your agencies’ 
response to concerning reports of myocarditis and pericarditis in post-vaccinated individuals.  
The timeline below details how, in early 2021, officials at the Centers for Disease Control and 
Prevention (CDC) and the Food and Drug Administration (FDA) were made aware of “a large 
number of reports” based on Israeli health data that showed “myocarditis, particularly in young 
people, following the administration of the Pfizer vaccine.”2 
 

                                                 
1 Letter from Ron Johnson, Ranking Member, Permanent Subcomm. on Investigations, to Xavier Becerra, Secretary, 
Dep’t of Health and Human Services, et. al, Nov. 19, 2024, 
https://www.ronjohnson.senate.gov/services/files/00AAFB3D-72EE-475F-94D5-66708B4AA86D. 
2 FOIA production: https://childrenshealthdefense.org/wp-content/uploads/23-00056-for-2-24-2023-Close.pdf at 
712. 
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revealed six cases of myocarditis, seven cases of myopericarditis, and 14 cases of pericarditis.”15  
The document noted:  
 

During this analysis period the reporting rate of myopericarditis following 
administration of the mRNA COVID-19 vaccines was low and estimated to be 0.7 
per million doses of vaccine administered.  However, the limitations of passive 
surveillance such as under-reporting, lack of a control group, missing and 
incomplete data make it challenging to assess causation.  Thus, FDA has not made 
a final determination regarding the causality between myopericarditis and the 
mRNA COVID-19 vaccines.  We will continue to monitor this outcome in active 
and passive surveillance.16 

 
 The document itself can be viewed in Enclosure 1.  It remains unclear whether this 
document or another version of it was shared with the Israeli Ministry of Health.  It is also 
unclear which FDA and CDC officials contributed to the document and when Israeli health 
officials shared that “they received reports of around 40 cases” of myocarditis/myopericarditis.17 
 

March 15, 2021 – March 31, 2021 
 

A collection of heavily-redacted FOIA records shows that on March 15, 2021, a CDC 
official who co-lead the Vaccine Safety Technical (VaST) Work Group began corresponding 
with an Israeli Ministry of Health official regarding “Covid-19 vaccine safety data.”18  On March 
16, 2021, the Ministry official wrote, “[w]e will be happy to share our data” and later that day, 
the CDC official responded “[t]hank you for this note and for your willingness to present to 
VaST.  We were hoping you could present on Monday, April 5.”19  Documents indicate that the 
Ministry official confirmed availability to present on April 5 and, on March 31, 2021, the CDC 
official requested that the Ministry official “send slides” ahead of the presentation.20 
 
 According to a public report, the slides that the Israeli Ministry of Health provided to the 
CDC showed that “by the end of March 2021, 5.2 million Israelis received the first dose of the 
vaccine and 4.8 million received the second dose.  The incidence of myocarditis following dose 
1 was 1.1 per million, and 11.7 per million following dose 2 — a 964% increase in incidence 
between the two.”21  The slide deck can be viewed in Enclosure 4. 
 
 
                                                 
15 Id. 
16 Id. at 715. 
17 Id. at 714. 
18 Id. at 726; Ed Berkovich and Amy Kelly, FOIA’d CDC Emails Reveal Disturbing Myocarditis Timeline 
Warranting Investigation: Different Messaging Internally Vs. Publicly About COVID-19 Vaccines and Myocarditis, 
Daily Clout, Nov. 2, 2023, https://dailyclout.io/foiad-cdc-emails-reveal-disturbing-myocarditis-timeline-warranting-
investigation/. 
19 FOIA production: https://childrenshealthdefense.org/wp-content/uploads/23-00056-for-2-24-2023-Close.pdf at 
725. 
20 Id. at 721-722. 
21 Brenda Baletti, Mounting Evidence Suggests CDC Hid Data on COVID Vaccines and Myocarditis, The Defender, 
Nov. 27, 2024, https://childrenshealthdefense.org/defender/mounting-evidence-cdc-hid-data-covid-vaccines-
myocarditis/. 
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deserves the complete truth about your agencies’ awareness of and lack of response to the 
glaring health risks associated with the COVID-19 vaccines.  Accordingly, I request you provide 
the following information by no later than December 19, 2024: 
 

1. An unredacted version of Enclosure 1. 
a. All records25 referring or relating to the drafting, review, and distribution of the 

attached document included and referenced in Enclosure 1. 
 

2. An unredacted version of Enclosure 2. 
 

3. An unredacted version of Enclosure 3. 
 

4. All records referring or relating to Enclosure 4 including communications between and 
among agency employees regarding data from the Israeli Ministry of Health on adverse 
events following COVID-19 vaccination. 
 

5. An unredacted version of Enclosure 5. 
 

Thank you for your attention to this matter. 
 

Sincerely, 
        
 

 
 
Ron Johnson 

       Ranking Member 
       Permanent Subcommittee on Investigations 
 
Enclosures 
 
 
cc: The Honorable Richard Blumenthal 
 Chairman 
 Permanent Subcommittee on Investigations 
 
 The Honorable Christi Grimm  

Inspector General  
Department of Health and Human Services 

 

                                                 
myocarditis/; Letter from Brian Hooker, Chief Scientific Officer, Children’s Health Defense, to Sen. Ron Johnson, 
Dec. 2, 2024 (on file with Subcomm.). 
25 “Records” include any written, recorded, or graphic material of any kind, including letters, memoranda, reports, 
notes, electronic data (emails, email attachments, and any other electronically-created or stored information), 
calendar entries, inter-office communications, meeting minutes, phone/voice mail or recordings/records of verbal 
communications, and drafts (whether or not they resulted in final documents). 
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Enclosure 4

















































 
 
 
 
 

Enclosure 5 
 
 

 






